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The commercial district building stock on Red River was developed during the 
period from the late-nineteenth century to early-twentieth century. In 2013 the 
Austin City Council created the Red River Cultural District proclaiming the area 
to be a long standing tradition in the city with unique historic, economic, and 
cultural heritage. In 2017 a non-profit, managed by the Red River Merchants’ 
Association, was formed to support the district and preserve cultural tourism to 
the area.  

After years of organizing and community conversations dating 
back to the 1960’s, The Emma S. Barrientos Mexican American 
Cultural Center opened its doors to visitors in 2007. The 
beloved community hub sits at the southern end of Rainey 
Street overlooking the Colorado River.  Its location honors 
the Mexican American community that existed along Rainey 
Street, East Avenue, and neighborhoods east of I-35.In 2010 the City of Austin produced the Waller Creek District Master Plan 

which set a vision for the restoration of the ecological functions of the creek, 
augmenting public spaces and improving the linkages and connections within 
the area. In 2018 City Council approved $110 million in capital funding for 
parks and trails throughout the Waller Creek District. The work is ongoing in 
partnership with the Waterloo Greenway Conservancy. 

The Austin Resource Center for the Homeless (ARCH) first opened its doors in 
2004 at 500 East 7th Street. 24/7 services include providing shelter, showers, 
basic needs, comprehensive case management, support services, and 
permanent supportive housing programs. Due to the facility’s site in the urban 
core, expansion to accommodate growing service needs has proven difficult.

In 1992 the Austin Convention Center was completed using revenue 
bonds approved by voters. It currently fronts East Cesar Chavez Street 
and occupies six city blocks bordered by Red River Street on the east, 
4th Street on the north and Trinity Street on the west. The 2015 
Convention Center Master Plan envisions an expansion to facilities that 
include connections to the district, public/private development, and 
infrastructure improvements. 

Most of the original homes and structures on Rainey Street were built between 
1885-1937. The “Rainey Barrio Preservation Plan” was submitted by the Rainey 
Area Neighborhood Association to City Council in November of 1980. This 
community created plan expressed the need for anti-displacement measures 
and highlighted the shortage of housing for low- and moderate-income families 
in the City. In 2004 the City rezoned the Rainey neighborhood to Central 
Business District, which  laid the groundwork for the Rainey Street of today. 

Built starting in the 1950’s and into the early 1960’s, the Texas “interregional” 
highway project was hailed as the “biggest and fanciest”  highway of the era. 
The controlled-access expressway replaced East Avenue and was to eventually 
connect San Antonio, Austin, and Dallas. A dedication and opening ceremony 
took place atop the highway in 1962. The upper decks of the highway opened 
in 1975. 

When East Avenue was paved in 1933 it was “among Austin’s most attractive 
thoroughfares.” Businesses, homes, apartments, and local institutions lined the 
wide avenue. Trees and wide medians provided place for relaxation and play for 
the Black, Mexican-American, and immigrant residents who called the diverse 
neighborhoods around East Avenue home. 

A City Plan for Austin, Texas advocated for zoning and land-use restrictions, 
municipal projects, roadway improvements, new schools, and new parks. The 
1928 Plan’s most dramatic and long lasting impacts came from the creation of 
the “Negro District,” which forced African American and Mexican residents who 
wanted access to city services to move east of what is today I-35. 

The original brick structure of what would become the Palm School was 
constructed in 1892. An important institution in the history of the Mexican-
American community in Austin, the Palm School was one of the few integrated 
neighborhood schools that allowed Mexican children to attend. The Palm 
School closed in 1976 after years of neglect. The building remains in its original 
location at the corner of Cesar Chavez Street and I-35. 

After the Civil War several freedman settlements took root in Austin. A few 
were located in the area surrounding East Avenue and Waller Creek. These 
communities included Pleasant Hill, established in 1865 in the highlands above 
Waller Creek between 7th and 11th streets and Masontown, established in 
1867, which went beyond East Avenue from 3rd to 6th streets

In 1839, three years after Texas gained its independence from Mexico, the 
City of Austin was founded. The original Edwin Waller 1839 Plan for the City of 
Austin laid out the new capital as one square mile divided into 14 square blocks. 
Cradled by Waller Creek and Shoal Creek, the downtown grid included Capitol 
Square, four additional public squares, and a wide Congress Avenue connecting 
Capitol Square to the Colorado River.

In 1561 the Spanish conquistador, Don Francisco Vasquez de Coronado led 
the exploration of the Santa Monica Sulfur Springs, which were known to be 
Tonkawa and Comanche encampments. From 1730-1731 Spanish friars set up 
short lived missions on the Colorado River near present day Barton Springs. In 
1824 the ratification of the Constitution of Mexico ends the Spanish Texas era. 
The Mexican province of Tejas joins the province of Coahuila to form the state 
of Coahuilaa y Tejas. 

This is the ancestral homeland of the Tonkawa people and later the Kiowa, 
Lipan Apache and Comanche. The Tonkawa lived in the region that extended 
west from central Texas and western Oklahoma to eastern New Mexico. The 
Tonkawa and other indigenous nations of the area were relocated in 1854 by 
the Texas Government to the Brazos Reservation and again in 1859 by the U.S. 
government to the Wichita Reservation near Fort Cobb, Oklahoma. 
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Esta es la tierra ancestral de los Tonkawa y luego los Kiowa, Apache Lipan y 
los Comanche. Los Tonkawa vivían en la región que se extendía al oeste desde 
el centro de Texas y la parte oeste de Oklahoma hasta la parte este de Nuevo 
México. En 1854, el gobierno de Texas reubicó a los Tonkawa y otras naciones 
indígenas del área a la Reservación Brazos y nuevamente en 1859 el gobierno 
de EE.UU. los reubicó a la Reservación Wichita cerca de Fort Cobb, Oklahoma. 

En 1561, el conquistador español Don Francisco Vasquez de Coronado dirigió 
la exploración del Manantial de Azufre de Santa Mónica, que se sabía eran 
campamentos de los Tonkawa y Comanche. Del 1730 al 1731, los frailes 
españoles establecieron misiones que no duraron mucho en el río Colorado 
cerca de lo que hoy es Barton Springs. En 1824, la ratificación de la Constitución 
de México da fin a la era española-texana. La provincia mexicana de Tejas se 
une a la provincia de Coahuila para formar el estado de Coahuila y Tejas. En 1839, tres años después de que Texas ganó su independencia de México, se 

fundó la ciudad de Austin. El plan original de Edwin Waller en 1839 para la ciudad 
de Austin delineó la nueva capital como una milla cuadrada dividida en 14 cuadras. 
Rodeada por el riachuelo Waller y el riachuelo Shoal, el área del centro de la ciudad 
incluía la Plaza del Capitolio, cuatro plazas públicas adicionales y la ancha avenida 
Congress para conectar la Plaza del Capitolio con el río Colorado.

Después de la Guerra Civil, se establecieron varios asentamientos de libertos 
en Austin. Varios fueron ubicados en el área alrededor de East Avenue y el 
riachuelo Waller. Estas comunidades incluyen a Pleasant Hill, establecida en 
1865 en las tierras altas sobre el riachuelo Waller entre las calles 7 y 11, y 
Masontown, establecida en 1867, cuyos límites se extendían más allá de East 
Avenue hasta las calles 3 y 6.

Un Plan para la Ciudad de Austin, Texas abogó por imponer restricciones de 
zonificación y uso de terrenos, proyectos municipales, mejoras a carreteras y 
escuelas y parques nuevos. El mayor y más duradero impacto del Plan de 1928 
provino de la creación del "Distrito para Negros", el cual obligó a los residentes 
afroamericanos y mexicanos que deseaban acceso a servicios de la ciudad a 
mudarse al este de lo que ahora es la I-35. 

La mayoría de las casas y estructuras originales en la calle Rainey se construyeron 
entre 1885 y 1937. La Asociación Vecinal del Área de Rainey presentó el "Plan 
de Preservación del Barrio Rainey" al Concejo Municipal en noviembre de 
1980. Este plan creado por la comunidad expresó la necesidad de medidas anti-
desplazamiento y resaltó la escasez de vivienda para familias de ingresos bajos y 
moderados de la Ciudad. En el 2004, la Ciudad rezonificó al vecindario Rainey al 
Distrito Comercial Central, que sirvió de base para lo que es hoy la calle Rainey. 

En 1933 cuando fue pavimentada, East Avenue figuró entre las "vías principales más 
atractivas de Austin". La ancha avenida se llenó de negocios, casas, apartamentos 
e instituciones locales. Los árboles y divisiones centrales proveían espacio para 
relajarse y divertirse a las comunidades negras, mexico-americanas y a los 
residentes inmigrantes que vivían en los vecindarios alrededor de East Avenue. 

En 1982 se completó el Centro de Convenciones de Austin usando bonos 
de recaudos aprobados por los votantes. Actualmente está frente a 
la calle Cesar Chavez y ocupa seis cuadras de la ciudad bordeadas por 
la calle Red River al este, la calle 4 al norte y la calle Trinity al oeste. El 
Plan Maestro del Centro de Convenciones vislumbra una expansión de 
las instalaciones que incluye conexiones con el distrito, construcciones 
públicas/privadas y mejoras a la infraestructura. El Centro de Recursos para Personas sin Hogar de Austin (ARCH) abrió sus 

puertas en el 2004 en 500 East 7th Street. Los servicios ofrecidos las 24 horas, 
los 7 días de la semana, incluyen albergue, duchas, necesidades básicas, manejo 
integral de casos, servicios de apoyo y programas de vivienda permanente con 
apoyo. Como la instalación está en el casco urbano, ha sido difícil expandir los 
servicios para atender la creciente necesidad.

El grupo de edificios comerciales en Red River se construyó durante el periodo 
entre finales del siglo diecinueve hasta principios del siglo veinte. En el 2013, 
el Concejo Municipal de Austin creó el Distrito Cultural Red River proclamando 
al área como una tradición duradera en la ciudad con una herencia histórica, 
económica y cultural única. En el 2017, una organización sin fines de lucro, 
administrada por la Asociación de Comerciantes de Red River, se fundó para 
apoyar al distrito y preservar el turismo cultural del área.  

Después de años de trabajo de organización y conversaciones 
con la comunidad iniciado en los años 60, el Centro Cultural 
México-americano Emma S. Barrientos abrió sus puertas en 
el 2007. El querido centro comunitario se encuentra en el 
extremo sur de la calle Rainey y mira hacia el río Colorado.  
Su ubicación honra a la comunidad méxico-americana que 
habitaba en la calle Rainey, East Avenue y los vecindarios al 
este de la I-35.

En el 2010, la Ciudad de Austin produjo el Plan Maestro del Distrito Waller 
Creek que fijó una visión para la restauración de las funciones ecológicas 
del riachuelo, ampliando los espacios púbicos y mejorando los enlaces y 
conexiones con el área. En el 2018, el Concejo Municipal aprobó $110 millones 
en financiamiento capital para parques y senderos por el Distrito Waller Creek. 
El trabajo continúa en sociedad con Waterloo Greenway Conservancy. 

La estructura original de ladrillos de lo que se convertiría en la Escuela Palm fue 
construida en 1892. La Escuela Palm, una institución importante en la historia 
de la comunidad mexico-americana en Austin, fue una de las pocas escuelas 
comunitarias integradas que permitían estudiantes mexicanos. La Escuela 
Palm cerró en 1976 después de haber sido descuidada por años. El edificio 
permanece en su ubicación original en la esquina de la Cesar Chavez y la I-35. 

Construido en los años 50 y hasta principios de los 60, el proyecto de 
autopista "interregional" de Texas fue halagado como la "autopista más 
grande y elegante" de su época. El expreso con acceso controlado reemplazó 
a East Avenue y se suponía que eventualmente conectara a San Antonio, 
Austin y Dallas. En 1962 se hizo una ceremonia de dedicación y apertura 
sobre la autopista. Los niveles superiores de la autopista abrieron en 1975. 
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